The Collections of the United Aulic
Chancellery and the Ministry of the
Interior

The state activities which are today
collectively referred to as administra-
tive work can be traced back to the end
of the 15th century. It was Emperor
Maximilian 1. who first established a
system of administrative bodies, amon-
gst which the aulic chancellery, a “writ-
ing and copying room” in charge of
issuing and distributing the orders of
the monarch and his central offices.
Both Emperors Ferdinand 1. and
Maximilian II. (1527-1576) further
expanded the scope of activities of the
aulic chancellery, with separate and
independent Bohemian, Hungarian
and Austrian departments slowly emer-
ging. Just as the aulic chancellery was
the central body for the Austrian
lands above and below the Enns
(Lower and Upper Austria), Inner Aus-
tria ( Styria, Carinthia, Krain and the
lands reaching as far south as the Adria-
tic) and the Tyrol and its forelands, the
Bohemian aulic chancellery was in
charge of the lands of the Bohemian
crown (Bohemia, Moravia, Silesia).
Maria Theresia was responsible for
amalgamating the two chancelleries
and ruling both the Bohemian and the
Austrian lands with the same principles.
In 1762 the “Directorium in publicis et
cameralibus”, which had replaced the
two chancelleries, became the “United
Bohemian Austrian Aulic Chancellery”.
Until 1848 this chancellery, with its
name and competences changing
several times, was the centre of political
administration for all lands except the
Hungarian ones. Its agenda not only
included those of a modern department
dealing with domestic matters, but also
agricultural matters, public health,
trade and commerce, taxes and levies,
legal authorities, legislation, civic-
guards and others more. In 1848, the
united aulic chancellery became the
ministry of the interior with some of its
original duties being assigned to other,
recently established authorities such as
the Ministries of Trade, Agriculture,
Justice or Finance, respectively.

The Vienna City Expansion Fund
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The Vienna city expansion fund
was created in 1858, when Emperor
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Interior decoration of the waiting room for members of the court atthe old Siidbahnhof
(railway station for south-bound trains). The station was destroyed in the Second
World War. Water colour over freehand drawing, ca. 1870.
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Francis Joseph 1. (1830-1916) gave
instructions to have the city walls
demolished and used for building pur-
poses together with the “Glacis” bey
them. The subsequent construs
the Ringstrasse and its buil

become the most spectact itec-

tural event in Vienna in ! nd half
of the 19th century expansion
fund was origi ached to the

ministry of r but due to its

wide range of ities soon outgrew
the dimension of a ministerial depart-
ment. It was in-charge of ‘demolishing
the forti S, ,sell the newly
2 ing land and the undeve-

F the Glacis beyond the city
proceeds of these sales were
ed to finance the magnificent
s of the ngstrasse Thus the
O the city expansion also docu-
tecturaL development of
Vxenna Ringstrasse over
ore than five decades. The

>s have lost none of their topica-
ch is amply demonstrated by
v Mifxample When in 1985
to be built on a
“undeveloped piece of land
e Ringstrasse, the building
had to observe an easement
Jand in favour of the Palais
d:séct[y behmd the lot. The
2d ir records

ther the palace nor its view
must

ed”. The architect who
personally® into the records of
the archiv -\ d'to provide for suffi-

v s’)he hotel and the
p’i}not

cient space
adjoining building ct
the view from thex alaﬁ ww
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The Police Archives
T 2

Contntio
The records of the police archive are"‘"(Halggenchtsérd??

a written documentation of the activi-
ties of the police and censorship offices
at court and of the supreme police au-
thorities. The police office at court was
the last of the so-called “Hofstellen” or
central authorities to be instituted. It
was responsible for observing all police
issues including censorship. The police
organisation was also responsible,
amongst other important tasks, for pre-
paring “situation reports” on the state
of security in the various crown lands.
These reports provide an excellent
source of information on the Italian uni-

tary movement (freedom and unitary
movement in Italy following the Napo-
leonic wars; the movement was carried

e secret society of the Carbonari,

of named after the coal makers of Cala-
tO

bria), the freemasons, the Jacobeans,
the situation in Hungary, the Vienna
Congress, the Viennese theatres (e.g.
admission of performance of “Wilhelm
Tell” by E. Schiller at the theatre “an der
Wien”, ban on performance of “Agnes
Bernauer” by Karl Giesecke) or drama
in Austria. Thepoliofﬁce at court was
dissolved after the"Revolution of 1848
and replaced in’ 1867 by the supreme
police a thonty as the central admini-
strative dy>of all pohce activities.
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The Justwe Arc ve
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The justice clnve was officially
estabhshed in 15;6 as part of the mini-
stry of justice, replacmfg what was no
more than a registry of old records. It
was mainly responsible for collectmg
documents of the supreme" office of
justice founded in 1749. Although Maria
Theresia’s reforms had propobed a
separation of judicial powers-and

ministration, a clear dmff
not drawn until 1848, th year of the

* land being ~ Revolution. The%upreme' office of

justice did not yet distinguish between
jurisdiction and legal administration. In
March 1848 legag administration was
mtegrzmedf into thehllnewl}l}srdltreatecé
ministry o )ustlce,w e jurisdiction o
first instance became mctgxhbent on the
supreme court of jusuce which had
. evolved from ?the ’sﬂpreme office of socie

”(ﬁé mdg-}af:

the
¢ u um
a collec;m"é‘f
codes ¢ al pro-
cedure), the Civil Code 1tsel£, legislation
in gener‘zﬂ Fideicommissum and legal
provisions f ower Austria
are all stored in the ves, thus pro-
viding an mvaluable documentauon of

tl tory of Austrian law. The hold-
in the 2 S are complemented
by of patents in two
parts, alled “Old Miscellanea”

(a mixed collection of privileges, both
originals and copies), and the more
recent collection of patents. They are
filed both by subject and in chronologi-
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ad- by the Habs'burgs
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cal order and contain patents, decrees
issued by the aulic chancellery, circu-
lars, privileges in their original or as
copies, dating back as far as 1130 (privi-
lege of the diocese of Olomouc). The
records of the ministry of justice itself
refer to all areas of the administration
of justice, including prison matters,

- covering the/perxod between 1848 and

1945.

ial-royal archive dealing
with the nobility, which continued to
exist in a slightly different form even
after 1918 tended purely for the
authorities. ‘It had close links'to the
supreme office dealing with the nobi-

lity housed.ir

the ‘of the inte-
rior, which was mn%oﬁ.issﬁmg
- diplomas and  privileges: The r records of

the nobility in this s‘ecnox% represent
one of the most precious sources for the
history of culture, including all the
ennoblements, bestowals of coats-of-
arms, and other acts _vrformed
eir capacity as
emperors and kmw 1€ Holy Roman
Empire and as sovereigns of the Aus-
trian lands from the 16th " tury up to

€ documen[s
borders of
C citizens from

E an _countries, from
Italy to Sweden, from Portugal to Rus-
ing to életermme their status in
n * sources. The docu-
esent a w1de range of differ-

cle,ﬁ mous artists, scientists,
“and economists as well as

g€01sle They include eminent poets
like Johann Wolfgang Goethe (1749-
1832) or Friedrich Schiller (1759-1805),
the painters Titian (Tiziano Vecellio,
1477 approx. — 1576), Arcimboldo
(1527-1593) and Rudolf Alt (1812-
1905), composers like Orlando Lassus
(1532-1594) and Franz Liszt (1811—
1886), the architects Nikolaus Pacassi
(1716-1790), Johann Lukas Hildebrandt
(1668-1745), Heinrich Ferstel (1828—
1883), Theophil Hansen (1813-1891),
Karl Hasenauer (1833-1894), general
Wallenstein (1583-1634) and Theodor
Korner (1828-1917, the father of the
later president), to mention only a few.
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The Archive for Education and Church
Affairs

The archive for education is as
important for the history of the Austrian
mind as it is for the history of religion.
When it was founded in 1896 it was still
linked to the library of the ministry of
education. At that time, the holdings
contained the old records of the depart-
ment for education (court research
commission up till 1848, department for
culture between 1360 and 1848, and
bookkeeping archive between 1760
and 1867). More recent documents,
reaching up to 1940, were added later
on. They all refer to the various stages
of the education system, from primary
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schools to universities in the Austrian
half of the monarchy and provide a
wide range of information on the intro-
duction of compulsory education for all
by Maria Theresia, the imperial act on
elementary education of 1869, the
foundation of the university of Czerno-
witz, the university reforms of the 18th
century decreed by the emperor Joseph
1T or those decreed by Francis Joseph in
the 19th century. The ecclesistical
records give an account of the relations
between the state and the church: the
abolition of monasteries, regulations
for parishes, the “Toleranzpatent”
(Toleration act) of 1781, the patent for
Protestants of 1861, the concordat of
1855 are only some of the issues docu-
mented in this collection.
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irche in Vienna with the two neighbouring buildings, signed “Ferstel, July 1877".

The Trad

e Archive
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This collection draws from three
large funds, the ministry of trade (1848—
1918), the ministry for public affairs
(1908-1918, and various postal and tele-
communications offices (1829-1918).
The manifold tasks of the ministry of
trade, founded in 1848, evolved in
various stages. Already then its main
scope of duties concerned trade and
commerce, industrial politics and the
public building industry. With the devel-
opment of foreign trade the affairs of
the postal and telegraph services and
sea and inland navigation also fell to the
ministry of trade. This included the pro-
jects for and subsequent construction



of the ship-canals connecting the portauen Of salt from to s

Danube and Oder, the Danube

Moldavia, the Danube-O
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The Railway Archives
s ES T e

When the ministry for railways was
established in 1897 it was also provided
with its own archives. These archives
document the development of the Aus-
trian railway system since the early days
of horse-drawn carriages for the trans-

3 uits  of
cting are still
viceroy of

ecome part of Aus-
he Spanish War of
is father he had
vassion for gathering
painting is thanks to him that the
Harrach's gallery of paintings at their
castle Rohrau (Lower Austria) today
contains the largest collection of
Neapolitan and Southern Italian
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Baroque paintings to be found north of
ps. It includes such famous pain-
cesco Solimena (1657-1747)
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na (1730—1820) and Carl count

enwart (1824-1899) who was

“prime minister under Emperor Francis
Joseph L.

Collection of Plans and Maps
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This collection essentially contains
appendixes from all other collections of
the general archives, which due to their
size have to be kept in separate cabi-
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The Finance and Aulic Chamber Archive

A sight worth seeing in Vienna

The Hofkeammerarchiv forms part of
the Osterreichisches Staatsarchiv (Aus-

=
1 =

trian state archives) and is located in the
building at Johannesgasse 0, in the first
district of Vienna. The Viennese, when
passing by, often ask themselves what
may be hidden in the interesting build-

View of the stacks of the Hofkammerarchiv; the shelves are filled with fascicles and

reference books bound in parchment.
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Christian Sapper

ing which bears the inscription “K.K.
Hofkammerarchiv”. The facade with its
clearly defined sections resembles a
piece of Biedermeier furniture used for
the storage of letters and documents.
The building was designed by the
famous architect Paul Sprenger (1798
1854). Not only is the building a gem of
Biedermeier architecture, but it still
functions perfectly in accordance with
the purpose for which it was originally
built in 1842.

The documents housed in the
archive building, which has been classi-
fied as a historical monument, have
been preserved in their entirety and
cover a period of nearly five centuries.
The archival material has merged into a
historical ensemble with the archive’s
furniture and building. In view of its
historic significance, the Hofkammer-
archiv, unlike other archives, was not
moved to the new central archive in
Erdberg, the third district of Vienna.

The archive is exceptional in a num-
ber of ways: the building was construc-
ted specifically as an archive in the Bie-
dermeier period and thus had not
formerly been a barrack or a monastery
no longer needed for its original pur-
pose. The archive’s furnishings also
date from the same period. Thus the
Hofkammerarchivis the oldest archive
building in Central Europe to be pre-
served in its original form. Moreover,
today it still serves its intended purpose
in an exemplary manner. All visitors are
filled with surprise and admiration at
the sight of the high ceilings, as well as
the painted and turned wooden shelves
holding thousands of thick leather-
bound folios, which with the beauti-
fully inscribed folders containing bund-
les of records, are waiting to be used by
interested researchers.

The archive was inaugurated in 1848,
the year that went down in history as
the “Sturmjabr” (“storm year”). At that
time, and this is the second feature
which makes the archive special, no
less a person than Franz Grillparzer
(1791-1872) was appointed director of
the Hofkammerarchiv. His office on
the second floor has been preserved



Franz Grillparzer’s office with its original furniture and fittings.

exactly as it was in 1856, when the poet
relinquished his post. Even the high
desk on which he wrote his dramas is
still there. In all probability, this office is
the only genuine Biedermeier room in
Vienna to be kept in its original form. It
can be visited free of charge.

The third distinctive feature of the
archive is the building that preceded

the Hofkammerarchiv. the Mariazeller

Hof, on whose foundations the archive
was constructed. A wonderful relief of
the Mariazeller Hofhas been preserved
and can be seen above the entrance to
the Hofkammerarchiv. The relief dates
back to 1482 and shows the donation of
the building complex located on the
corner of Johannesgasse/Annagasse, to
the convent of Kleinmariazell. The two-
storey basement vaults of the original
building which were constructed in

around 1400, were integrated into the
new archive building. Mention should
also be made of the fourth distinctive
feature: the Hofkammerarchiv is the
oldest of Vienna's archives. Its origins
can be traced back to 1578: then it was,
however, not yet located in Johannes-
gasse.

The Hofkammer and the history of its
archival materials
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The Hofkammer, whose documents,
records, files and accounts are stored in
the Hofkammerarchiv, was the central
authority dealing with the financial and
economic affairs of the Habsburg mon-
archy. In the beginning, it was primarily
responsible for the administration of
the sovereign's demesne lands, but
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soon afterwards, it was entrusted with
the task of raising the money required
to maintain the court and to cover the
expenses of the state and the army.
Maximilian I, who was chronically
short of cash, had obviously hoped that
he would be able to come to grips with
the desperate state of his finances by
setting up a new authority for financial
affairs. However, it was only much later,
namely in 1527, that Archduke Ferdi-
nand, who was later to become Emperor
Ferdinand I, succeeded in transforming
the Hofkammerinto an authority which
functioned well and continued in exist-
ence for several centuries. After the
reforms carried out by Maria Theresa in
1762, the Hofkammerbecame the cen-
tral financial authority of the patrimo-
nial lands. Acting as a type of “megamin-
istry” it was responsible for finances,
trade, economics, mining and transport



within the Habsburg empire. It was the
great revolution of 1848 and the
ensuing reorganization of the entire
administration of the monarchy that put
an end to the 300 years' history of the
Hofkammer, whose functions were
then assigned to several different minis-
tries and authorities.

By 1578, sixty years after its founda-
tion, many records had been accumula-
ted in the building of the Hofkammer.
In addition to these, old books, docu-
ments and land registers recording the
possessions and revenues of the Habs-
burg family in the Middle Ages were
also deposited there. Thus, storage
space was needed for the enormous
masses of paper and parchment and it
was necessary that this space be located
in the vicinity of both the Hofkammer
and the Imperial Palace. It was found in
the Kaiserspital (imperial hospital)
where some rooms no longer used by

Vertical section of a spherical clock for the Grand Vizier Mehmed Sokollu Pasha. It ﬁ},eus'i‘r?;pt}iﬁ‘o‘fg‘z‘fdc‘f};‘fﬁeﬁfsaiﬁ‘gewé?;

was commissioned in 1576 from a master clockmaker in Augsburg by the Imperial 1y rarely consulted. Wilderich Wei-

Envoy to Istanbul, David Ungnad. ning (around 1568-1639 or 1640), a civil
servant, was entrusted with the custody
of these records, which were already
historical documents, and with arrang-
ing new documents which periodi-
cally reached this repository. Thus Mr.
Weining became the first archivist in
Austria’s first state archive. For many
generations, the archive remained in
the Kaiserspital, which stood on the site
of the present modern administrative
building on Minoritenplatz/Ballhaus-
platz. The archive survived numerous
fires, the Thirty Years’ War, the Turkish
siege in 1683 and the two occupations
of Vienna by Napoleon’s armies.

The threat of dissolution
e= === S

The greatest threat to the repository
did not come from outside, but from the
department to which it was directly
responsible. In 1801, The Supreme
Chancellor Prokop Count Lazansky
(1771-1823) considered the Hofkam-
merarchivto be superfluous. He insis-
ted that the daily increasing amount of
records should simply be destroyed
“because otherwise separate buildings
would have to be bought or construc-

R —— ; - ' ted for the storage of these old docu-

Sectional drawing of a hauberk with gilt appliqué work and encrusted with gemsand  ments”. Emperor Franz I, who, at the
stars. Itwas made in Niirnberg in 1590 as a special gift—actually as a form of tribute—  age of 16, had visited the archive
from Emperor Rudolf |l to Sinan Pasha. together with his father Emperor Leo-
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pold I (1747-1792), ordered that the
archive be dissolved, but that a detailed
statement be made of the contents of
every document that was to be de-
stroyed. Compliance with this order
would have meant a hundred years of
work for the archivists. This was, how-
ever, no longer required when Karl
Count Zichy (1753-18206), the new pre-
sident of the Hofkammer, resolutely
fought against the closing down of the
archive, arguing that it held “all the
important records from the time of
Maximilian I onwards which described
the particular practices, habits, customs
and ceremonies of past days of poten-
tial interest to posterity, and contained
not only useful data for historical re-
search, chronology or for the illustration " — T—
of the lives of renowned families, but  Salt productlon inthe Salzkammergut deplctlonfrom ca. 1656 of “Fuderhacken and
which ... could also serve as evidence”.  Kiifferstossen”, showing how the blocks of salt were broken up and crushed and then
Emperor Francis I saw the sense of this putinto wooden barrels for transportation.

and ordered that “the intended dissolu-

tion of the archive be abandoned. The

staff of the archives is to be personally

responsible for ensuring that docu-

ments of even minor importance or

with even minor rarity value are not

removed from the holdings”, even if

their significance is merely historical.

The 19th century, in which the
science of history was held in great
esteem, upgraded the status of the Hof-
kammerarchiv. In 1816, when the post
of director of the Hofkammerarchivfell
vacant, the then minister of finance
wrote to the Emperor that the Hofkam-
merarchiv was “the repository of the
most important older and more recent
records... It is of great value to histori-
ans and constitutes both for the state
and private individuals ...a vital source
of information on older properties,
pledges, ... and real estate”. Given the
importance of the post of archive direc-
tor, he continued, the education and
personality of such a candidate were to
be given priority over seniority and
rank.

First-rate scientists as archivists
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The candidate with the best acade- ‘\ "y SO /1’ (:’/( '///1 et :
mic qualifications was the Swabian T S0 ,%‘,, ,,,‘,m,m,, ‘,,3, L,,”,,, silfyntfaics ,,{.‘o/.;'...,,’.,/,' wad
Johann Georg Megerle von Miihlfeld ""'( e/ B X Mo dln d,,.}(,,,,, ‘gv“,/‘,“ﬁ"ﬂ‘l-"‘”__,“.““.’,r;,‘

(1780-1831) whp, when he was still 9..‘ /"‘/'/"/ '/ﬁ// /2 g 7;;,, B e 8 Hibesw Poike.
young, had acquired renown as a mem- %« / A ’

ber of several scholarly societies. In his S : : : o !

career as an archivist, he wrote a num- Textile industry in the Austrian forelands: depiction of hemp processing added as a

ber of historical monographs on how supplementto a report by the government of the forelands of July 24, 1766.
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